# Canadian Institute of Diversity and Inclusion Institut canadien de la diversité et de l'inclusion





# **Locking in Your Leadership:**

Developing The Ironclad Business Case for D&I. January 20, 2014.



# Acknowledgements

This report was compiled by Cathy Gallagher-Louisy, Director of Community Partnerships and Knowledge Services at the Canadian Institute of Diversity and Inclusion. However, the contents of this report were truly a collaborative effort. The CIDI would like to thank everyone who participated in our Community of Practice events during the fall of 2013 in Vancouver, Edmonton, Calgary, and Toronto. Their participation and input were instrumental in the creation of this toolkit.

# **Employer and Diversity Consultant Participants**

- AC Communications & Consulting
- ACAD
- Agrium Wholesale
- Alberta Human Services
- BjK Seniors Advocate & Consultant
- BMO
- BiviO
  Colgory B(
- Calgary PoliceCanada Safeway
- Canadian Pacific
- Catalyst
- Centre for Race and
- CultureChampions Career Centre
- City of Calgary
- City of Edmonton
- City of Vancouver
- Compass Group Canada
- Davies Ward Phillips &
- Vineberg
- Deloitte
- Dentons Canada
- Diverselnc
- Edmonton Chamber of
  Commerce
- Edmonton Police Service
- Elegant By Design
- Enbridge
- Encana
- ENMAX Corporation
- Enterprise Rent-a-Car Canada
- Ferenaz Lalji
- Global Learning Inc.
- Good Business Is
- Government of Alberta
- Grant Macewan
- University
- Grid Software Inc.
- Home Depot Canada
- Husky Energy
- Hydro One

- ICBC
- Immigrant Employment Council of BC
- Intercultural Interactions Inc.
- Kimberly Plestid
- KPMG
- LeadershipSmartsLoblaw Companies
- Limited Louise Sauvé-Dubois
- Mafalda Arias and
- Associates
- Manulife Financial
- McMillan
- MentorCity
- Mondelez International
- Moneris Solutions
- Morrison Hershfield
- MOSAIC
- Mount Royal University
- Neil MacDonald
- Norton Rose Fulbright
- Ontario Power Generation
- Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt
- Pluralism Peformance Inc.
- Prospect Human Services
- PSEMA 4 GROUP
- PwC
- Richmond Multicultural Community Services
- Rotman School of Management, University of Toronto
- Ryerson University
- SAP

•

- Scotiabank
  - SFU
- Shell
- Sodexo Canada
- SPORT4ONTARIO
- Students' Association of Mt. Royal University

TD

•

- TELUS
- Tonya Syvitski
- Toronto Region Conservation Authority
- TransCanada
- Trican Well Services Ltd.
- TRIEC
- University of Alberta
- University of British
  Columbia
- Vancity
- Viable Calgary
- WestJet Airlines
- Woodgreen
- WorkBC Pacific
  Community Resources
  Society
- Workforce Planning Board
- Workplace Fairness Institute
- Workplace Institute
- World Trade Centre Edmonton - Edmonton Chamber of Commerce
- Worley Parsons





# Contents

About the Canadian Institute of Diversity and Inclusion	1
Founding 25 Partners	2
Advisory Board	3
Introduction	4
Developing this Toolkit:	6
The Methodology	6
Components of a D&I Business Case:	
Business Case Structure Guidelines	7
Headline	7
Executive Summary	8
Situational / Stakeholder Analysis	8
Organizational Impacts / Business Imperatives	
SWOT Analysis	
Legal Frameworks and Ramifications.	
Conclusion and Recommendations.	
Wrap Up	





# About the Canadian Institute of Diversity and Inclusion

The Canadian Institute of Diversity and Inclusion ("CIDI") is a national non-profit organization that is quickly becoming the trusted advisor for all issues related to Diversity and Inclusion, and Human Rights and Equity within Canada's workplaces.

Effectively managing Diversity and Inclusion ("D&I") is a strategic imperative for all Canadian employers. In many organizations, D&I and HR practitioners are responsible for achieving substantial performance goals as well as transforming their organizations into inclusive work environments; however, they are often under-resourced creating challenges in achieving their organization's strategy.

The CIDI helps employers, business leaders, human resources ("HR") and D&I practitioners effectively address the full picture of diversity within the workplace by providing innovative and proven strategies, research, tools, and educational supports with the goal of helping improve the overall inclusivity of the Canadian workforce.

The CIDI's seven key areas of focus include the following:

- Supporting our Members (individual members and Employer Partners) on their D&I journey. This is done through our monthly webinars and Community of Practice events (held quarterly in major cities across Canada), providing engaging, productive networking and promising practice sharing where business, HR and D&I professionals come together to share and learn.
- Community Connector. Bringing together diversity-related NGO's and non-profit organizations to share information and learn from one another. This also involves developing and maintaining a central database of community organizations to assist employers in better navigating this space.

- » Education. Providing employers with a library of practical, effective learning solutions for leaders, management teams, Diversity Councils, ERG leaders, HR and D&I professionals, and all people.
- » Knowledge Repository. A centralized online library of D&I research, data, and promising practice information, with a specific focus on Canada.
- » Research. Cutting-edge exclusive research that will contribute to the Canadian conversation on diversity and inclusion.
- » Legislative Support. Providing practical experience to help employers with compliance related to current and future D&I related legislation (Employment Equity Act, AODA, etc.).
- » Consultancy. Practical, credible, and sustainable consulting services specific to D&I in Canada, provided by a team of subject matter experts with decades of experience delivering D&I work inside organizations.

To learn more about the CIDI, please visit our website at **www.cidi-icdi.ca**.







# **Founding 25 Partners**

The CIDI is a member-supported organization, providing services to both individual members and Employer Partners. We would like to acknowledge the exceptional support and dedication of our Founding 25 Employer Partners.



For more information on becoming an Employer Partner with the CIDI, please contact us or visit **www.cidi-icdi.ca**.





# **Advisory Board**

The commitment, drive and passion of our Advisory Board is critical to the success of the CIDI. We thank them for their continued support and dedication.

**Beverley Aikenhead** Manager, Organizational Development Region of Waterloo Waterloo, ON

Cyndy Allen Team Lead Consulting, Respectful Workplace and Diversity Bell Aliant Halifax, NS

# Kim Clark

Partnership Development CBC Radio-Canada Toronto, ON

#### **Dr. Rick Colbourne**

Assistant Dean for Indigenous Business Education and Director, Ch'nook at the Sauder School of Business University of British Columbia (UBC). Vancouver, BC

Wayne Cuervo Senior Manager, CSR and Diversity Cisco Toronto, ON

#### Leah De Santis

Senior Director, Talent and Diversity Loblaw Brampton, ON

Fiona Easton HR Manager – Diversity and Inclusion TELUS Vancouver, BC

Zohra Halani Team Lead, Diversity & Inclusion Husky Energy Calgary, AB

**Tej Singh Hazra** Head of Diversity and Inclusion HSBC Bank Canada Vancouver, BC

Wade King Advisor, Safe Disclosure & Human Rights University of Alberta Edmonton, AB

#### Deanna Matzanke

Director, Workforce Strategies and Employment Relationships Scotiabank Toronto, ON

#### Mubina Mawani

Inclusion and Diversity Lead Accenture Canada Toronto, ON

#### **Matt Petersen**

Senior Director of Diversity Strategy and Workplace Inclusion CIBC Toronto, ON

#### Zakeana Reid

Senior Manager, Strategic HR Initiatives Morrison Hershfield Calgary, AB

#### **Pauline Streete**

Diversity Leader SaskPower Regina, SK

#### Sandeep Tatla

Head of Diversity and Inclusion PwC Toronto, ON

### Norma Tombari

Director, Global Diversity RBC Toronto, ON

#### Lisa Vogt

Partner, Chief Diversity Officer McCarthy Tétrault Vancouver, BC

### Vanessa White

SVP, Human Resources Sodexo Burlington, ON







# Introduction



What's the business case for diversity?

That is a terribly nebulous question but can you answer it? Can you answer it for your

organization specifically? Do you have a document that is your road map for success?

In 2013, as part of our first Community of Practice events we hosted in Calgary, Edmonton, Toronto and Vancouver, we asked participants to identify some of their 'pain points' – the challenges they are facing that affect their ability to succeed when it comes to diversity and inclusion in their respective organizations.

We heard a lot, but there were two major issues that we identified in all four cities, totally independent of each other: leadership accountability and the business case.

In order to truly embed diversity in your organization, every leader, manager, and employee needs to be able to understand and articulate why Diversity and Inclusion, or Human Rights and Equity is important to your organization.

If they cannot articulate the why – they will not support the how. Nor will they dedicate their time or resources to initiatives for which they cannot articulate the justification or rationale.

A Diversity and Inclusion ("D&I") Business Case is a brief document that helps organizations easily articulate their unique strategic imperative for embracing and leveraging Diversity and Inclusion, and Human Rights and Equity ("HR&E"). The Business Case should be aligned with the organization's key strategic goals and should articulate the "why" of diversity for that specific organization, not the "how". Goals and methods should later be articulated in the Diversity Strategy or Strategic Plan document.

As part of our second Community of Practice events of 2013, we engaged participants in an exercise around what makes the perfect business case. It began in Vancouver as an idea. We took the results of that session to Edmonton, then to Calgary, and then finally to Toronto. In each city the ideas grew and expanded. Every participant – over 150 people from across the country, from different industries, professions, and sectors – had the opportunity to put their stamp on the process. It was a truly collaborative effort.

For us at the Institute, it was an exhilarating process. To watch a document take shape and grow, and see how the benefit of diversity of thought and experience can lead to true creativity and innovation. Truly inspiring!

The purpose of this toolkit is to give you the framework for creating a Business Case document that can be easily customized to suit your own organization.

# A few notes about this document and its potential audiences:

A note about verbiage: We've called this document Locking in your Leadership: Developing the Ironclad Business Case for D&I; however we know that the term "business case" doesn't resonate in every organization. In some organizations "strategic imperative" or "project justification" may be more appropriate to refer to these types of documents. However, for ease of reference, we will refer to these documents as the business case throughout this report.



For employers that feel like they already 'get' the business case: There are some employers in Canada that have done some wonderful work in the area of Diversity and Inclusion. Many have won awards. There is no doubt in my mind that there is a strong commitment to D&I in some of Canada's workplaces.

I treat my business case like a touchstone. In my previous role, I would re-read the document every year to remind myself of what I had said in the original business case, see if it was still relevant, and ensure we weren't seeing 'scope creep'.

I would encourage every employer that thinks they get the business case to revisit this process. Use this document as a guide and compare it against your own business case document. If you don't have a business case document, you should...even if you have won a multitude of awards. Working on a D&I strategy without a business case document is like building the second floor of a house before you've built the foundation – not effective.

### For small employers that find this all

**overwhelming**: I recognize how challenging it can be to take on yet another 'thing' when you're busy trying to keep the lights on.

There are more small employers in Canada than there are large, which means there are thousands of employers trying to figure out this 'diversity thing' without dedicated resources. It's tempting to ignore the imperative (and having a D&I strategy is an imperative), but if you don't act, you run the risk of losing out on a lot.

Never fear: it doesn't have to be that hard.

Our recommendation is simple. Use this guide and write your business case. It doesn't need to be a huge undertaking and you don't need a team of 15 to complete the process. We've provided you with resources and tools that should help make the process simple.

We hope you enjoy and find value in our first Toolkit of 2014. We look forward to bringing you more such documents as we move forward with engaging hundreds of people across Canada in developing the solutions to our biggest inclusion challenges.

Min Dol

Michael Bach, CCDP/AP Founder Canadian Institute of Diversity and Inclusion January 20, 2014





# **Developing this Toolkit:**

# The Methodology.

The contents of this toolkit are derived from a truly collaborative effort – with input from over 150 professionals across Canada.

In the spring of 2013, the CIDI hosted a series of in-person Community of Practice Events that we called our "Getting to Know You" events in four cities across Canada: Vancouver, Edmonton, Calgary and Toronto. Attendees included human resources and D&I professionals, as well as people in other functions of their organizations – diversity champions – who are dedicated to improving the inclusivity of their organizations. Participants came from public sector, non-profit, and private sector organizations, and represented almost every major industry in Canada.

At those events we asked participants to identify the biggest challenges to their work of creating inclusive organizations in Canada. Subsequently, we summarized the challenges addressed at each location and provided a summary report with resources to the event participants.

We created a chart comparing the major issues and challenges across the country and some very clear trends emerged. While there were some enlightening regional differences, there were a few significant universal challenges that were discussed at every table group in every city:

- Leadership and/or organizational buy in;
- Prioritization of D&I and HR&E Initiatives; and
- Resources for successful execution human capital and financial.

To us at the Institute, the message was loud and clear: organizational leaders are not "getting"

the business case for Diversity & Inclusion, and Human Rights and Equity. We believe in order to address these challenges we would be best to help articulate the business case for D&I and HR&E in their organizations.

For our next round of Community of Practice events, we engaged participants in developing the ironclad business case for Diversity and Inclusion. We asked participants to engage in a group brainstorm and work together on crafting the structure of the business case such that it would be easily customizable and applicable in all types of organizations – whether large or small; public, non-profit, or private sector.

First we asked participants to develop a headline for the business case. This was followed by developing a structure for the document, what sections should be included, what was an *imperative* and what was *nice to have*.

Then at subsequent events, we asked participants to develop the verbiage for each of the component parts of the structure.

Attendees at all four events had lively discussion and debate. We invited and encouraged everyone to bring their own experiences to the table, and yet challenged them to think outside the box, taking into consideration the needs of a broader audience.

All that information was taken back to our office, sifted through repeatedly, and distilled down into what we believe is a template – a

guide, model or prototype – that can be picked up by any employer and used to develop a customized business case document.





# **Components of a D&I Business Case:**

## **Business Case Structure Guidelines.**

The purpose of a Business Case document is to briefly explain the rationale or reason your organization needs to invest resources in Diversity and Inclusion, or Human Rights and Equity.

As such, we recommend that your business case be brief – a maximum of two pages. The primary audience for the business case is your leaders. If you present them with a 20 page document, they won't read it. You need to be concise if you want to get the message across.

Not every section of the toolkit below will be required for your organization's Business Case. It's up to you to choose the aspects and format

### Headline.

Every Business Case document needs a headline. With thousands of competing priorities, it is increasingly hard to grab, and keep people's attention. The headline is the hook that will encourage your organization's leaders, managers, and colleagues to read more. The headline could also be considered the proverbial "elevator speech." Imagine you have your CEO's attention for less than a minute. What are you going to say that will pique his or her interest to learn more? That's the purpose of the headline.

Below we have presented examples of excellent headlines developed by our participants. You can choose the one that best suits your organization, or amend one of the headlines below to suit your needs.

• Effective diversity in an environment of trust and respect will mitigate risk, improve organizational/social image

that will be most impactful for your organization's leaders.

#### **Helpful Resources:**

- → HBR Guide to Building Your Business Case (Harvard Business Review). <u>http://hbr.org/product/hbr-guide-tobuilding-your-business-case-ebooktools/an/16980E-KND-ENG</u>
- → Only skin deep? Re-examining the business case for diversity (Deloitte Australia).

http://www.deloitte.com/assets/Dcom-Australia/Local%20Assets/Documents/S ervices/Consulting/Human%20Capital/D iversity/Deloitte\_Only\_skin\_deep\_12\_S eptember\_2011.pdf

and lead to innovation, engagement and results.

- Investing in inclusion increases the three E's: engagement, empowerment and efficiency.
- Inclusion is inevitable; exclusion equals extinction.
- Inclusive workforces intuitively builds trust with the global market.
- It is critical to our organization to attract, engage and retain the unique attributes of all employees, leveraging their respective expertise and experiences that will result in desired outcomes, foster innovation, build trusted relationships, and enhance our reputation in the community.
- To be competitive in a cut-throat, global environment, we must create a culture of trust where people know their



differences are valued as they will strive to be innovative without barriers.

- Diversity, in an environment built on trust and respect, will generate a return on investment by enabling us to attract and retain the best; bringing innovation and different perspectives to the table; and mirroring the values and diversity of our clients, customers and communities.
- Trust the evidence; invest in diversity and inclusion and gain (\$XX m per year).

### **Helpful Resources:**

- How to Write Magnetic Headlines.
  <u>http://www.copyblogger.com/magnetic</u>
  <u>-headlines/</u>
- → 5 Easy Tricks to Help You Write Catchy Headlines. <u>http://goinswriter.com/catchy-</u> headlines/

### **Executive Summary.**

The Executive Summary should be a paragraph that summarizes the rest of the Business Case, which ties the headline into your organizational values and strategic imperatives.

In the Executive Summary and throughout your Business Case document, keep messages concise and aligned with the language of your organization's strategic plans and priorities.

### At a high level, the Executive Summary should articulate the key organizational impacts or benefits associated with a strong commitment to D&I and HR&E and should also touch on the risks associated with not focusing on inclusion.

### **Helpful Resources:**

➔ How to Write an Executive Summary. <u>http://www.inc.com/guides/2010/09/h</u> <u>ow-to-write-an-executive-</u> <u>summary.html</u>

## Scope, Context, and Definitions.

This section allows you to clarify terminology and outline the key concepts behind your diversity and inclusion initiatives. You should include:

• Statement of Opportunity. The issues you are facing should be framed as opportunities rather than problems.

# Situational / Stakeholder Analysis

This section may have different titles in different organizations. It may be referred to as a Current State Analysis, Environmental Scan, or Market Analysis. In your Business Case, always use the verbiage that will resonate best with your organization's leaders. Helpful Resources:

Your organization's definition of

diversity and inclusion

 CIDI's Definitions of Diversity, Inclusion, and D&I.
 <u>http://www.cidi-icdi.ca/about/di-defined</u>

In developing the Situational / Stakeholder Analysis, you'll need to do some research to gather the data that is most pertinent to your organization. Any information presented in the Business Case should be a brief high-level summary of your findings. If you need to provide backup documentation, include it as an



addendum to the main document, but don't assume or expect that it will be read.

Situational Analysis may include:

- Global, national or local benchmarking or best practices reports.
- Sector/industry comparison.
- Population demographics.
- Political/legal frameworks.

The purpose of Stakeholder Analysis is to articulate why D&I and HR&E is important to the key stakeholders in your organization.

# **Organizational Impacts / Business Imperatives.**

In this section, you should articulate the organizational or business impacts that could be achieved by investing in your D&I and HR&E initiatives. Show how D&I can have a direct impact on specific aspects of your organization's overall strategic plan. Again, mirroring your verbiage to that of your organization's key strategy documents will provide greater credibility.

Organizational impacts to consider including:

- 1. Clients/customers/patients/service users:
  - Static market share because we are not addressing our customers' needs.
  - How has our client base changed? (demographic changes)
  - How satisfied are our clients? (analyzed by demographics)
  - What steps do we need to do to meet our clients' needs? How can diversity help?
- 2. Employees:
  - Are employees reflective of our clients, our community or the available labour pool?

Stakeholders may include:

- Employees and/or volunteers.
- Clients/customers/patients/service users.
- Competitors or other organizations in the same sector.
- Investors or funders.
- Community.

### **Helpful Resources:**

- Stakeholder Analysis Guidelines (World Health Organization). <u>http://www.who.int/workforcealliance/</u> knowledge/toolkit/33.pdf [pdf]
  - How are we doing with recruiting, retaining and promoting our employees?
  - Workforce / Canadian demographic trends.
  - Employee satisfaction by demographics.
  - Leadership demographics.
- 3. Community:
  - Demographics of communities.
  - Where we work and what is our reputation?

### **Helpful Resources:**

➔ Diversity and its Impact on Organizational Performance: The Influence of Diversity Constructions on Expectations and Outcomes (Journal of Technology Management and Innovation).

http://www.jotmi.org/index.php/GT/art icle/view/art215

 What Is Diversity and How Does It Impact Work? (Small Business by Demand Media). <u>http://smallbusiness.chron.com/diversit</u> <u>y-impact-work-15985.html</u>



### SWOT Analysis.

SWOT stands for *Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities* and *Threats*. In some organizations, such an analysis may be referred to as Sensitivities, Risks and Contingencies, Strategic Considerations Analysis, or Risk vs Benefit Analysis. Again always align the verbiage in your Business Case with the terminology that is currently used by your organization.

For the purpose of developing your D&I business case, conduct a SWOT Analysis to articulate your organization's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats in the context of addressing D&I and HR&E in your organization.

Issues to consider in your SWOT Analysis:

- 1. Legal Frameworks:
  - Business regulations/authorities.
  - Employment regulations/authorities.
- 2. Risks:
  - Operational risk. e.g., supplier/vendor efficiency and effectiveness.

## Legal Frameworks and Ramifications.

Here you should clearly articulate the risks and costs associated with not paying attention to D&I and HR&E. Identify any legal requirements that may be applicable to your organization and the risks or penalties for non-compliance. Also, if applicable consider the cost associated with being audited on any related legislation. Include issues such as:

- 1. Legislation:
  - Human rights (provincial and federal).
  - Employment Equity (if applicable).

- Financial risk. e.g., liability, cost.
- Reputational risk.
- Employees and volunteers. e.g., turnover, complaints.
- 3. Business Benefits:
  - Operational.
  - Financial return on investment ("ROI").
  - Reputational.
  - People.
  - Customer/client.
- 4. Critical Success Factors.
- 5. Organizational Strengths and Opportunities.

#### **Helpful Resources:**

 Recent Research on Team and Organizational Diversity: SWOT Analysis and Implications (Journal of Management). http://jom.sagepub.com/content/29/6/ 801.abstract

- Accessibility legislation (varies by province).
- WSIB and other provincial requirements.
- Industry-specific.
- Privacy.
- 2. Policies:
  - Based on required legislation.
  - Corporate social responsibility.
  - Employee-related (sick days, flex hours, pay equity, etc.).



- 3. Audit:
  - History.
    - Record-keeping.

### **Helpful Resources:**

→ Equality in the Workplace (Department of Labour). <u>http://www.labour.gc.ca/eng/standards</u> <u>equity/eq/index.shtml</u>

# **Conclusion and Recommendations.**

In this section of your Business Case you should define "the Ask". Clearly articulate what you want the organization to do next and provide suggested timelines.

If you can, you should also try to identify resources to handle the recommendations.

Again, ensure that you articulate how your recommendations will impact your organization's strategic goals and objectives and reiterate the ROI for addressing these issues.





# Wrap Up.

Developing a solid business case is a critical component to gaining leadership buy-in for your organization's Diversity and Inclusion, and Human Rights and Equity endeavors.

In order for organizational leaders to drive change and be advocates of D&I and HR&E in your organization, they first need to be able to understand and articulate the imperative for your organization.

Every organization will have its own unique reasons for focusing on D&I and HR&E. It's

important that you, your leaders, managers, and all employees can articulate what they are to ensure the organization prioritizes accordingly.

Articulating "why" your organization should address D&I and HR&E will then help you get to the "how" in your Diversity Strategy or Strategic Plan.

We hope that the tools we have provided in this document are valuable and useful in helping you craft (or re-craft) your business case.



